
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
The Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD 

8 November 2019  
 
To:  Members of the Market Sub Committee (Councillors G Perham, D Bowater, 
K Cursons, C Chambers, T Morris, R Berry, M Freeman, R Goodchild and P Snelling) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Market Sub Committee to be held 
on Thursday, 21 November 2019 commencing at 10.30 am in the The Council 
Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton 
Buzzard, Beds, LU7 1HD.  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC (3 MINUTES PER PERSON; MAXIMUM 15 

MINUTES)  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 3(f) and 3(g). 
 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


MARKET SUB COMMITTEE Thursday, 21 November 2019 
 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 4) 

 

 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Market Sub-
Committee meeting held on 29 August 2019. 
 

5.   MARKET 12 MONTH REVIEW (Pages 5 - 16) 

 

 To receive the 12-month review report and consider the recommendations 
contained therein (to follow). 
 

6.   MARKET TRADER REPRESENTATION (Pages 17 - 26) 

 

 To receive a report on market trader representation and to consider ther 
recommendations contained therein (to follow). 
 

7.   MARKET GENERAL UPDATE (Pages 27 - 36) 

 

 To receive a general update on market activity and to consider the 
commendations contained therein (attached). 
 

8.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 37 - 42) 

 

 To receive a report on the market budgets and to consider ther 
recommendations contained therein (to follow). 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



 

Page 4 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 29 AUGUST 2019 AT 1030 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  J M Freeman  
  G Perham (Chair) 
  D Bowater 
  C Chambers 
  R Berry 
  P Snelling 
             V Harvey (substituting R Goodchild) 
             A Dodwell (substituting T Morris) 
             F Kharawala (substituting K Cursons) 
  

                      Also in attendance:       M Saccoccio, Town Clerk 
  V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic  
  Services)  
  A Harrison (Market Manager) 
  M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
  Dave Gibbins (Market Trader Representative)  
  left meeting at 11:10 hours) 
      
  
            Members of the Public: 0 
            Members of the Press: 0 
  

  
10/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
 Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor R Goodchild 

(substituted by Councillor V Harvey), Councillor T Morris (substituted by 
Councillor F Kharawala), Councillor K Cursons (substituted by Councillor A 
Dodwell) and Peter Elmore, Market Trader Representative. 

 

11/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 
 
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made.  
 

12/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
  There were no questions from the public. 

   
13/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 23 May 2019 for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 23 May 2019 be approved as a correct record and were signed 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Market Sub-Committee 29 AUGUST 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 5 

accordingly. 
 

14/MK MARKET POLICY UPDATES 
 

The Sub-Committee received and considered a report regarding the Adverse 
Weather Policy and Disclaimer. 
 
Since the relaunch of the Market in September 2017, the market had been 
forced to close on six occasions, as it was deemed hazardous to erect and 
operate from market structures.  Some traders chose to trade at the market 
despite these conditions, which had prompted the Town Council to amend the 
Adverse Weather Policy and Disclaimer to offer clarity to all who have an 
interest in the market. The revised policy provided market traders with choices 
and had been approved by the Town Council’s insurer as appropriate in terms of 
risk management.  
 
After lengthy discussion the Sub Committee voted to adopt the Adverse 
Weather Policy with one wording amendment from Yellow Weather Warning to 
Amber Weather Warning, with one objection from Councillor Harvey and an 
abstention from Councillor Snelling. 

 
 RESOLVED – 
 

(a) To recommend to Policy and Finance Committee to adopt the 
Adverse Weather Policy with amended wording from Yellow 
Weather warning to Amber Weather warning attached at Appendix 
A 

(b)  To recommend to Policy and Finance Committee to endorse the 
Disclaimer as attached at Appendix B. 

 
  (c)       To endorse the recommended policy changes as set out. 

 
15/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE  
   

The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity including 
information on delivery against market plan targets, trader recruitment and 
promotion, environmental ambitions for the market, on-going highway 
maintenance and marketing of the market.  

 

The Sub Committee agreed the Environmental Ambitions adopted by Council on 
24 June 2019 were positive in raising awareness and encouraged the use of 
appropriate materials within the market with traders and members of the public.  

 

The Sub Committee wanted to recognise the award given during 2019 
International Love Your Local Market campaign where Leighton Buzzard was 
awarded the 2019 Facebook Champion in England.   The National Association 
of British Markets Authorities (NABMA) said ‘Leighton Buzzard Market shared 
engaging posts about their market traders, visitors and events throughout 

Page 2



Market Sub-Committee 29 AUGUST 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 6 

LYLM2019.  The content shared on their page showcased the beauty of 
Leighton Buzzard Market in its entirety’.  

A question was raised regarding the expectation for growth since the relaunch 
and what the long-term vision for the market would be.   

After discussion Councillor Harvey wanted it noted she was unhappy with the 
way the meeting had been conducted and progressed. 

 
RESOLVED to note the report. 

 
16/MK    BUDGET REPORT 

 
The Sub-Committee received a budget report for April to June 2019. 
 
RESOLVED to note the report with one abstention from Councillor V 
Harvey. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 11:36 hours. 

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 AUGUST 2019. 

 

 

Chair 21 NOVEMBER 2019  

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    21 November 2019 
 
Title:   Leighton Buzzard Market  
 
Purpose of the Report: Market 12-month review  
 
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 

Economic Services and Adrian 
Harrison, Market Manager   

 
 

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 2. Objective 19 

Implications:   

Financial √ Within existing budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

√ Annual market review 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded, the proposal is: 
 
1.1 To note the report. 
 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.2  The market was relaunched in September 2017. This is report provides the 

second annual review since that time.   
 
3 MARKET RELAUNCH ACTION PLAN  
 
3.1 At the time of endorsement, Committee was aware that not all the planned 

relaunch activity set out in the Market Relaunch Action Plan, was achievable by 
the launch date.  Progress since the previous year on the outstanding actions 
is provided below:   

 
a) The principle authority commenced work on re-location of bollards, bicycle 

racks and the removal of a signpost around the Market Cross in July 2019. 
Some elements of work remain incomplete yet will be achieved within 
financial year 2019/20. 

b) Extending the electricity supply is still to be achieved in financial year 
2019/20.   

c) Creation of a seating area. This has become possible now that the bollards 

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 
  

and bicycle racks have been re-located around the Market Cross. It resulted 
in the original ambitions for opening-up the market cross area and turning 
the food trader around to face the cross. In collaboration with the food 
trader, a larger seating area has been provided beside with the existing 
benched seating.  

 
4 TRADER AND PUBLIC SURVEY FEEDBACK   
 
4.1 Market trader survey outcomes   
 
4.1.2  Of the 32 permanent traders invited to complete the survey, only 6 responded. 
 Feedback has been noted yet the small response number limits the value of the 
 feedback.   
 
4.1.3. Officers requested that traders be invited to take part in the Business 
 Confidence element of the Town Benchmarking Report undertaken by People 
 and Places (P&P) on behalf of Central Bedfordshire Council. Whilst their 
 participation was not originally included, P&P approached traders  in 
 early November inviting their participation. At the time  of writing this report, 
 it is not known how many traders took up the opportunity to contribute to the 
 survey towards gaining an understanding of the town centre’s retail 
 performance.   
 
4.2 Market public survey outcomes 
 
4.2.1 The 56 customers who responded to the market survey provide a valuable
 indicator of views and market usage. Data secured via this survey is considered 
 alongside the Town Benchmarking Report undertaken by People and Places 
 (P&P) on behalf of Central Bedfordshire Council, which received 1163 
 responses to the Town Centre User Survey, inclusive of market related 
 questions. 
 
4.2.2. Previously, the Town Council had led on undertaking the delivery of the P&P 
 survey and due to this, there are two comparison years-worth of data based on 
 customer use of the market to support the market review.   
 
4.3 Customer origin  
 
4.3.1 56 customers responded to the market customer survey. Using the same 
 definition as the P&P Benchmarking survey, the majority of which were local to 
 the town. 
 

   

Local -  those who live within a Post Code covering the town  
 

31 

Visitor -  those who live within a Post Code less than a 30-minute drive 0 

Tourist -  those who live within a Post Code further than a 30-minute drive 5 

Skipped the question 18 

Invalid answers 2 

Total: 56 

Page 6



 
  
4.3.2 Similarly to the above, of the recorded 751 postcodes (captured by businesses 
 in their shops when making sales), 73% of customers gave local post codes.  
 

 2019 % 2018 % 2017 % 

Local 73 81 80 

Visitor 21 13 14 

Tourist 5 6 7 

 
4.3.3. The above evidences that the town and market predominantly serve the local 
 demographic suggesting its value for residents’  town centre experience and 
 shopping habits. Ongoing and future promotion therefore would continue to 
 target  residents. In doing so, promotional activity will need to reach new 
 residents and housing developments on the outskirts of the town. 
 
4.4 Age range of market survey respondents.   
 
4.1.1. It is encouraging to note, with the market specific survey, that the higher 

percentages of respondent’s age falls below the 55 years, (of the 56 
respondents).  This moves to dismiss assertions that markets serve an ageing 
demographic. It echoes the assertion by the National Association of Market 
Authorities’ (NABMA) and NMTF that there is a market renaissance with 
markets broadening their appeal and flexible in addressing social trends which 
attracts new users, e.g. shop local, reduced wrappings, food/dining specialist 
markets and so on.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2.  In comparison, the P&P survey attracted respondents for a whole town centre  

survey. Questions on the market were introduced in 2018 yet data on market 
specific customers is not separated out.   

 
Age LB 2019 

% 
LB 2018 

% 
LB 2017 

% 

16-25 3 7 6 

26-35 10 23 26 

36-45 19 31 30 

46-55 19 20 20 

56-65 18 11 11 

Over 65 28 7 7 

Prefer not to answer 3 1 0 

Under
18

18-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65 + I'd
rather

not
say

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

What age range do you fall within?

Responses

Page 7



 
  
4.5 Average Spend 
 
4.5.1 Of the 56 responses to the market specific survey, the predominant spend 

range sits between £1.00 to £20.00 per visit with the highest average 
concentrated on between £10.01 to £20.00. 

  
  

 
 
4.5.2 The P&P market specific questions identified a similar spend range  between 
 £5.01 - £20.00 yet the highest average differed from above, being between 
 £5.01 to £10.00. This has remained similar for two comparison years.    
 

On average how much money do you 
spend on a normal visit to the market? 

LB 2019 
% 

LB 2018 
% 

Nothing 17 24 

£0.01 - £5.00 24 24 

£5.01 - £10.00 31 27 

£10.01 - £20.00 20 18 

£20.01 - £50.00 7 7 

More than £50.00 1 1 

 
 
5 MARKET DATA  

 
5.1 Footfall 

 
5.1.2. The Town Benchmarking Report (People & Places, Aug 2019), shows footfall 

on a market day (Tuesday) is significantly higher than on a non-market day. 
Data via the benchmarking surveys covers a three-year period. The footfall 
count remains higher in 2019 than 2017, which suggests the market is 
sustaining custom, however there is a fall in footfall compared to those of 2018.  

 

  
 N.B. This survey data did not include a Saturday footfall count. 
 

£0.00 -
£5.00

£5.01 -
£10.00

£10.01 -
£20.00

£20.01 -
£50.00

More than
£50.00

0.00%
10.00%
20.00%
30.00%
40.00%

On a typical visit to the Market, on average how 
much do you spend?

Responses

 National 
Small towns  
(<250 units) 

National 
 Large Towns 
(>250 units) 

LB 2019 LB 2018 LB 2017 

Market Day 110 310 325 351 291 

Non-Market Day 105 241 187 180 170 

Page 8



 
  
5.1.3 Relevant to footfall data - the recent 2019 market customer survey confirmed 

that the Saturday market day is the most visited. (56 respondents, 5 of which 
skipped this question.) 

 

 
 
 
5.1.4  Market dedicated monthly footfall counts have been taken on Tuesday and 

Saturday markets since March 2018 providing two-years of comparison footfall 
data. Information on weather conditions, trader attendance numbers and 
speciality/themed markets are held against the date footfall is counted as this 
has influence on footfall. The table at Appendix B shows a summary of this 
year’s data. In keeping with the Town benchmarking data, a fall in footfall is 
shown.  

 
5.1.5. The market does not operate in isolation  of national trends in customer activity 
 and retail innovation. The information below provides a flavour of the national 
 context for footfall. Springboard is a leading provider of data relating to High 
 Street performance  including footfall. For week ending 22 September 2019, 
 Springboard presented the below footfall data for the East of England.  
  
 “Footfall across all retail destinations 

 declined by -3.1% from the week 
 before, and by -6.1% year on year.” 
 (UK Weekly Footfall Benchmarks 
 WK 39 2019) 

 
. 

 
  
 
 
 
  
 
5.2 Traders numbers 
 
5.2.1 Comparison trader attendance numbers over four years recorded to the nearest 

date appear to indicate a fall in trader attendance numbers for the month of 
September in 2019.  
 

5.2.2 September Saturday trader numbers show a fall in permanent/casual traders 

0.00%
20.00%
40.00%
60.00%
80.00%

Which day(s) do you typically visit the 
Market?

Responses

Page 9



 
  

by 6 when comparing with the previous year. Comparison attendance figures 
for the Saturdays pre and post 28th September 2019, show an attendance mix 
at 23 and 25, plus speciality trader attendance.  

 
 
 
 
   

  
5.2.3   September Tuesday trader numbers show a fall in permanent/casual traders 
 by 10 when comparing with the previous year. Comparison attendance figures 
 for the Tuesdays pre and post 24th September 2019, show an attendance mix 
 at 18 and 16 plus speciality traders. Both figures remain lower that the 2018 
 figure.  
 
 
 

 
5.2.4 Further examination of market day details show that Tuesday 24th September 
 incurred ‘very wet’ weather. 23 traders were registered to attend which 
 means 12 traders opted not to attend. According to market records, out of the 
 12 non-attending traders, 10 traders opted not to attend due to the weather 
 conditions, and 2 had booked a holiday. 
 
 

5.2.5 Notwithstanding the background explanations explored above of recorded 
September day trader attendance figures, there is a slight decrease in 
attendance figures. The fall in permanent traders is detailed in the table below 
which compares trader classification figures held on the ‘active’ trader list per 
attending market. Other trade categories show an increase.  

 

Number of traders on ‘active’ trader registration list. 
 

30 September,  
2018 

28 September, 
2019 

Difference 

permanent traders                  32 30 -  2 

casual traders                         14 27 + 13 

farmers market traders             6 8 + 2 

handmade and craft traders   16 25 + 9 

 
5.2.6  The changing scene of markets shows an increase in the practice of being a 
 casual trader and not wishing to sign up to a permanent licence. As previously 

reported, traders are being advised to diversify their trading practices and target 
festivals, speciality markets and seasonal opportunities. Thus, casual trader’s 
attendance changes according to their specialism/product line, e.g. if their 
product fits any given festival scene. Therefore, attendance of Leighton 
Buzzard Market will fluctuate accordingly. That said, it is worth noting that 

2012 Saturday 22 September mix of traders was recorded at            27 

2017 Saturday 23 September mix of traders was recorded at            28 

2018 Saturday 22 September the mix of traders was recorded at       28 
(plus 12x Craft & Handmade traders =  
40 traders in total) 

2019 Saturday 28 September mix of traders was recorded at             22 
(plus 14x Craft and Handmade traders =  
36 traders in total) 

2012 Tuesday 25 September mix of traders was recorded at            23 

2017 Tuesday 26 September mix of traders was recorded at            21 

2018 Tuesday 25 September the mix of traders was recorded at       21 

2019 Tuesday 24 September mix of traders was recorded at            11 

Page 10



 
  

traders return to the market outside of their festival season. 
 
5.2.7 Since the last annual report, as of the last Saturday in September 2019, 
 reasons for changes in trader attendance figures are listed below. Suffice to 
 say, these figures change regularly throughout the year.  

 

 2x traders were removed from the market due to excessive and repeated 
     rent arrears.  

 2x traders left to open a shop, one being within the town centre. 
 2x left for full-time employment.  
 1x left. 
 4x new traders have joined the market. 
 1x Saturday trader as increased attendance to include the Tuesday market. 
 1x trader has increased their pitch size. 
 0x traders have reduced their pitch size. 

 
5.2.8 Elements of the above lists show the role of markets as a place for business 
 start-up and incubator. Similarly, some businesses opt to wind down 
 their businesses by becoming a trader, selling remaining stock and then 
 closing.  
 
5.2.9   The changing number of traders is provided in Committee’s quarterly meetings 

under ‘general updates.’  Weekly attendance data is provided in the weekly 
Councillor newsletter. 

 
5.2.10  Whilst Committee has background data on actual trader numbers, public 

perception on any given date of a visit to the market is difficult to manage. If 
traders take a ‘holiday’, opt to attend festival or the weather deters their visit, 
the perception is of a dying market. Likewise, if the public enjoy a new trader 
testing their products on the market for a while who then opts not to stay or 
takes up casual status, the immediate view is that a trader is lost.  

 
5.3 Trader Incentives 
 
5.3.1 Any new trader traders can trade for 4 consecutive weeks and get the 5th free to 

encourage ongoing attendance either as a casual or permanent trader. The 
table below shows the take-up of the offer over the last review period October 
2018 to September 2019. All traders are offered this incentive when they sign 
their trader application forms. 

 
Incentive No. of traders taking the 

option 
No. of traders opting not to 

take-up the option. 

Trade 4 consecutive 
weeks and get 5th free 

 
3 

 
4 

  1x became permanent 
trader. 

 2x carried on as casual 
traders 

 4 Signed as 
permanent traders 
Without going 
casual. 

 
  
 

Page 11



 
  
   N.B. Some traders are content to sign up permanently as it secures a 

guaranteed pitch location and the existing 4 weeks trading holidays a year. 
(Traders may take a ‘holiday’ thus miss a trading day yet do not need to pay 
rent. Permanent traders only are gifted this provision.)  

 
5.3.2. The permanent trader long-service discount incentive is adjusted annually to 

reflect trader’s attendance. There were no new traders reaching long service 
discount incentives in the current review period. 

 
5.4      Trader recruitment 
 
5.4.1 Trader recruitment continues using industry led publications, local publications, 

and the market’s dedicated website and social media. Traders are also 
encouraged to self-promote the market. Since April 2019 recruitment data has 
been used to monitor pitch take-up. A total of 53 enquiries to trade on all 
markets have been received of which 27 traders opted to try the markets. 

 
5.5 Available pitch usage figure 
  
5.5.1 The number of available pitches is 80. This year, April 2019, is the first year 

that pitch space usage has been monitored thus setting the baseline for future 
comparisons  using the last Saturday in the month of September. This excludes 
speciality market allocated pitches. 

 

2019 On Saturday 28 September pitches used       43 

 
 N.B. Recorded absences on this date is 2 permanent traders both using their 
 holiday allowance.  
 
5.6  Market product list 

 
5.6.1 The 2018 and 2019 comparison list of product categories is provided in the 

table below which counts the number of traders providing any given product 
range as of 28 September 2019 – both market days combined.  

 
 

2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 

Product list Numbers of traders providing the product range – combining 
both market days. 

 Trader category PERM’  PERM’
T 

CAS’L  CAS’L FAR’S FAR’S H'MAD
E 

H'MAD
E 

Food – meat/fish  2 1    3 3    

Food - baked  1 1 
 

   1   1 

Food - hot  2 2 1 5       

Food - fruit/veg 3 3    
 

    

Food – deli, 
cheese, olives, etc. 

4 4 3 5 3 4    

Food - animals/pets 1 2 
 

 
 

    

Footwear   2 1 2  
 

    

Page 12



 
  

 
5.6.2 The speciality markets provide diversity to regular Charter Market (Tuesday and 
 Saturday) trader products. Speciality markets are delivered alongside the 
 Saturday general market. As per footfall data and customer survey feedback 
 shows, Saturday is the most visited market day.  
 
6. REVIEW OF PITCH SIZES AND PRICES 

 
6.1 The market’s basic pitch size remains at 3m x 3m which is the emerging
 industry standard. This is borne out by many new enquiries asking for 
 single  pitches rather than multiple. Traders that enquire about trading 
 using  their own gazebos mainly use the same size or the slightly smaller 
 size of 3m x 2.5m. This reflects the NABMA and NMTF forums and 
 publications encouraging trader diversification of selling outlets, e.g. festival 
 attendance generally does not use traditional metal stalls, though some might.  
 
6.2 Over the last year 2 traders have requested a larger size. 
 
6.3 Leighton Buzzard market has two price points; the casual rate at £23 per 3m 
 sq. pitch and  the permanent rate £19 per 3m sq. What sets Leighton Buzzard 
 market apart from other markets is that a gazebo is offered along with side 
 sheets, weights, tables and erection at no extra cost. Other markets may have 
 a similar price yet do not offer all the addons.  
 
6.4 Verbal feedback from new casual traders is positive with many commenting on 

 the good value the market offers. This is echoed by existing traders. For 
example, a permanent trader who started with a single pitch has expanded 
to three pitches due to the demand for his product. Another relatively 
 new trader has expanded from a single to a double pitch. Neither trader

Purses, Bags & 
Luggage  

2 2    
 

 1 2 

Clothing  3 3 
 

1 
 

 2 4 

Clothing 
accessories – belts, 
hats, scarves, etc. 

2 2 1    2 2 

Homeware  1 1 2 9 
 

 6 11 

House 
Improvement   

1 1    
 

    

Personal Care – 
daily living aids, 
e.g. mobility  

1     
 

  1 1 

Personal Care - 
grooming 

1 1   1    
 

 

Leisure & Hobbies -  
reading, etc.  

2 1 4 4     2  

Stationary - Pens, 
paper, cards, etc. 

1 1    
 

 1 1 

Garden  2 2    
 

 
 

 

Jewellery 1 2 1  2 
 

 1 3 

 
TOTALS 

 
32 

 
29 

 
14 

 
27 

 
6 

 
8 

 
16 

 
25 

Page 13



 
  

 requested a discount for multiple pitch purchases. Both stated that they felt 
 they were already getting good value for money. 

 
6.4 There is no standardisation for markets in relation to pitch sizes or prices. Such 

issues must be taken on a locality basis. As mentioned above, traders have not 
been restricted by the prise or price. Indeed, many visiting traders who test the 
relevance of their product on our market, have mentioned the location of their 
pitch being their main concern, i.e. being on the north size of the High Street 
where higher footfall is apparent. Maintaining functional pitch size limits therefore 
has enabled the recruitment of traders on the popular side of the High Street.   

 
7.  CONCLUSIONS 
 
7.1  The Council’s market intelligence is improving year on year. The town centre 

People and Places benchmarking data provides comparison information that 
benefits Committee’s understanding of how well the market is preforming. 

 
7.2    National customer and retail trends will continue to have a bearing on the market. 

The market industry is presenting the emergence of a market renaissance. This 
however is borne from markets broadening their scope and appeal in addition to, 
and not relying on, what is referred to as a ‘traditional’ market.   

 
7.3  The street market will always be susceptible to weather conditions and the 

changes associated to climate change. Committee is referred to Agenda Item 8, 
Market Budget Report, regarding income and expenditure. The impact of 
cancellations due to weather is evidenced here.  

  
7.4  The market continues to successfully operate in difficult retail times, yet the 

consistency of permanent trader figures is encouraging all be it a changing 
landscape with regards to classifications for traders. Ongoing recruitment for 
permanent status may well be desirable and or course be promoted, however 
there are many factors that influence a trader’s decision.   

 
7.5 There is little evidence to suggest a need to change currently advertised pitch 

sizes or fees. That said, the situation will need ongoing monitoring. 
 
7.6 Arguably, it can be said that the market is ‘holding its own’ when reviewing trader 

numbers. There is no room however for complacency and officers continue to 
promote the market to customers - in order to ensure they know what is on offer 
thus bring footfall, and to traders - to expand the product offer for customers, thus 
provide a business opportunity to traders.  

 
 
END 

Page 14



MARKET FOOTFALL COUNT COMPARISON - 2018 / 2019                APPENDIX B 
 
N.B. Comparison dates vary with events happening one year yet not the following year. This, 
along with the different weather conditions encountered, will have some relevance on the 
footfall. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
       

 

Tue / Apr 2018 2019 difference  Sat / May 2018 2019 difference 

Average 325 325 same  Average 444 352 -95 
 Notes: Sunny/ Partly 

Cloudy 

 

Notes: Date changed from April 
27th, Market Cancelled due to 
weather conditions 

 

   
 

    
 

Tues / May 2018 2019   Sat / May 2018 2019  

Average 351 301 -50  Average 424 418 -6 
 Notes: Sunny with light 

showers. Please note 
footfall counts were not 
conducted during the 
shower periods 

 Notes: Cloudy/ Sunny  

 

    

 

       
        

 

Tue / Jun  2018 2019   Sat / Jun 2018 2019  

Average 317 306 -11  Average 457 476 -19 
 Notes: Sunny with showers  Notes: Cloudy/ Sunny  

   
 

    
 

Tue / Jul  2018 2019   Sat / Jul 2018 2019  

Average 311 293 -18  Average 389 320 -69 
 

Notes: Hot and Sunny  

Notes: 2019 Overcast day with 
showers. Please note footfall counts 
were not conducted during the 
shower periods 

 

            

Tue / Aug  2018 2019   Sat / Aug 2018 2019  

Average 333 379 -46  Average 414 373 -41 
 

Notes: Hot and Sunny  

Notes: Date changed from 10th 
August due to weather conditions. 
Sunny.  

 

   
 

    
 

Tue / Sep  2018 2019   Sat / Sep  2018 2019  

Average 330 245 -85  Average 500 380 -120 
 Notes: Raining, Strong 

Wind  Notes: Overcast 
 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    21 November 2019 
 
Title:   Market trader representation  
 
Purpose of the Report: To establish a framework for trader 

representation.  
 
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 

Economic Services  
  

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim: 2 - To continue to support a 
vibrant town through partnership working and initiatives including 
management of the street market, support for local businesses, 
town and community promotions and town centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial   

Human Resources   

Operational/Service delivery √ To provide a clear structure for trader representation at 
Committee meetings to facilitate trader liaison. 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should members be minded, the proposal is to; 
 
1.1 Note the report 
 

2. BACKGROUND  
 

2.1 Following its meeting on 29/08/19, Council received a communication stating the 
Chairperson of the market trader group would no longer attend Committee 
meetings. A different member of the group has been nominated to attend this 
meeting in his place.   

 
2.2 Officers continue to communicate with all traders via the Council’s Trader 

newsletter and through direct letter communication on matters relevant to the 
market.   

 
2.3 One of the actions in the market annual work plan, reported with the general 

market update, is no.9, to review the ‘engagement with traders / format for 
Committee trader representation’. 

 
2.4 Committee has expressed its wish to maintain trader representation, with non-

voting rights around the table.  
 
3. TRADER REPRESENTATION AT COMMITTEE 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 
  

 
3.1 Officers propose to bring a future recommendation to the February Committee to 

give consideration for a trader group to secure affiliation to the National Market 
Trader Federation (NMTF) to support trader representation at Committee 
meetings. 

 
3.2 The NMTF sets out how it will work with locality-based trader representation 

groups in its document, “Group Guidelines”, attached at Appendix A. 
 
3.3 Trader groups are self-governed and secure formal recognition by the NMTF 

through the appointment of a Liaison Officer. A Liaison Officer has priority access 
to training, advice and guidance from NMTF Head Office. Liaison Officers receive 
free travel and attendance at the NMTF Annual General Meeting thus establishing 
peer support networks, etc. 

 
3.4 The requirements for this approach include: 
 

 All members of the group must trade from the same location or have a shared 
trading connection, e.g. all trade at Leighton Buzzard Market or are all 
permanent traders. 

 If a group has more than 20 members, it can nominate a second Liaison Officer. 
(Duties are associated to this role as set out in section 6 of the attached 
document, Appendix A) 

 The Liaison Officer must hold an active membership of NMTF. 

 Groups must register with NMTF on an annual basis to ensure continued 
recognition.  

 Groups without a Liaison Officer will not be recognised by the NMTF.  
 

3.5 NMTF Field Officers actively tour the country visiting markets and developing 
contact with local groups and have been invited to attend the market. It is 
Officer’s understanding that traders may opt to maintain an existing group 
structure or decide to create a new one when considering the idea to nominate 
a group Liaison Officer.  

 
3.6 It may not be necessary that the identified trader Liaison Officer is the same 

person around the Committee table. This is to be explored as part of the process. 
 
3.7 Officers have requested a Field Officer to visit Leighton Buzzard Market to 

discuss affiliation of a market trader group with the NMTF. Officers will further 
develop the proposal once having received feedback from the NMTF Field 
Officer and traders. 

 
3.8 In addition to the above, Officers may also propose that more than one trader is 

requested to attend Committee meetings to facilitate: a) trader peer support 
when representing the greater group, and b) to reflect a broader trader 
perspective in discussion.  

 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
  
4.  CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 To ensure trader representation is constructively undertaken, notwithstanding 

occasions when representation disagrees with Committee, Committee may 
wish to consider giving guidelines for how it will give recognition to trader 
representation around its committee table. In doing so, Committee could 
constructively identify trader representatives to supportive independent 
assistance from the NMTF. 

 
 
 END 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 20



 

 

 

 

 

NMTF GROUP GUIDELINES 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Page 21



1. BACKGROUND 

1.1. At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 18 April 2016, members voted to incorporate and 

decided upon a set of Articles of Association that will govern NMTF Ltd from 1 July 2016. 

1.2. Before 1 July 2016, local groups of members were able to be recognised as NMTF Branches 

and rules governing their formation and conduct were part of the NMTF’s Constitution.  

1.3. NMTF Branches are not included as part of the Articles of Association of NMTF Ltd.  

1.4. Directors of NMTF Ltd, the Executive Board, agreed on 16 May 2016 that the national body 

will continue to recognise members who form working groups to achieve common goals. 

1.5. These guidelines outline a programme by which members who form working groups to 

achieve common goals can receive recognition from NMTF Ltd. 

1.6. This programme will be called NMTF Groups. Head Office will coordinate, promote and 

support an NMTF Groups Network across the UK. 

 

2. PURPOSE 

2.1. The objects of NMTF Ltd are to safeguard, promote and develop the retail markets and 

events industry for the benefit, and in the best interests of, its members. 

2.2. In carrying out its objects, NMTF Ltd shall promote equality of opportunity and oppose any 

form of discrimination on grounds of race, ethnic origin, gender, sexual orientation, age, 

disability or religion. 

2.3. Members of NMTF Ltd are encouraged to work together in solidarity to achieve common 

goals and provide one another with mutual support and understanding. 

2.4. NMTF Groups are encouraged to represent the mutual interests of their members in order 

to safeguard, promote and develop the market(s) or event(s) where they trade. 

 

3. GOVERNANCE OF NMTF GROUPS 

3.1. The objects and structure of an NMTF Group are for its members to decide. NMTF Groups 

are autonomous from NMTF Ltd.  

 
Page 22



4. RECOGNITION BY NMTF LTD 

4.1. To be recognised as an NMTF Group by NMTF Ltd all members of a group must trade from 

the same location (e.g. NMTF Barnsley Group, NMTF Cambridge Street Traders Group) or 

have a shared trading connection (e.g. NMTF Historic Traders Group, NMTF Fairs Group). 

4.2. To be recognised as an NMTF Group by NMTF Ltd each group must have a Liaison Officer 

who will liaise with Head Office on behalf of the NMTF Group.  

4.2.1. NMTF Groups with more than 20 members can nominate one additional Liaison 

Officer who will liaise with Head Office on behalf of the NMTF Group. 

4.2.2. A Liaison Officer must hold an active membership of NMTF Ltd. 

4.2.3. Duties of a Liaison Officer are outlined in Section 6 

4.2.4. The removal of recognition as a Liaison Officer is outlined in Section 7 

4.3. NMTF Groups must register with NMTF Ltd on an annual basis to ensure continuation of 

recognition from NMTF Ltd.  

4.3.1. NMTF Groups without a Liaison Officer will not be recognised as an NMTF Group. 

4.4. An appropriate Market Manager and/or Chief Executive will be informed of the name and 

contact details of the Liaison Officer(s) for the NMTF Group.  

 

5. BENEFITS OF BEING A RECOGNISED NMTF GROUP 

5.1. NMTF Ltd will offer a range of benefits in order to encourage the formation and support the 

sustainability of an NMTF Group.  

5.2. NMTF Ltd reserve the right to withdraw and introduce benefits from time to time. Liaison 

Officers will be informed in advance of any changes. 

5.3. Benefits available to NMTF Groups include: 

5.3.1. Use of the NMTF Group name, NMTF Groups Network logo in any communications 

collateral, which includes but is not limited to: business cards, newsletters, e-bulletins 

and on websites and social media.  

5.3.2. Free travel and free attendance for recognised Liaison Officers at the Annual 

General Meeting of NMTF Ltd (AGM). 
Page 23



5.3.2.1. Travel by standard class public transport will be reimbursed. Attendance 

includes overnight accommodation.  

5.3.2.2. If all recognised Liaison Officers for the NMTF Group are unable to attend the 

AGM, they may nominate one member of the NMTF Group, who must also be a 

member of NMTF Ltd, to attend in their place.  

5.3.3. Free membership of NMTF Ltd for recognised Liaison Officers.  

5.3.3.1. Issued by voucher at the AGM only redeemable against the renewal of a 

membership of the NMTF in the name of the recognised Liaison Officer. 

5.3.3.2. Members nominated to attend the AGM in the place of a recognised Liaison 

Officer are not eligible to claim free membership of NMTF Ltd.  

5.3.3.3. Voucher limited to the price of a single membership of NMTF Ltd at the time of 

the AGM. 

5.3.3.4. Liaison Officers must have been in the role for a minimum of six months. 

5.3.4. Priority access to advice and guidance from Head Office, including attendance at 

meetings by Field Support Officers (subject to availability) 

5.3.5. Dedicated area in the NMTF’s online portal, including access to a forum for Liaison 

Officers.  

5.3.6. Free attendance for up to two Liaison Officers at a series of quarterly training 

events held at the Head Office of NMTF Ltd in Barnsley, South Yorkshire (Spring 2017.) 

 

6. DUTIES OF A LIASON OFFICER 

6.1. To act on behalf of the members of the NMTF Group in any matter affecting their business 

and professional interests. 

6.2. To take a leading role in the coordination of activities undertaken by members of the NMTF 

Group.  

6.3. To undertake 6.1 to 6.2 in a fair and just manner. 

6.4. To act as the main contact(s) for Head Office with regards to any queries they may have, 

which include but are not limited to: 
Page 24



6.4.1. Issues from members of NMTF Ltd who contact Head Office for advice affecting their 

business related to the trading location or connection represented by the NMTF Group. 

6.4.2. Press enquiries from local and regional media related to the trading location or 

connection represented by the NMTF Group. 

6.4.3. Invitations to represent the NMTF Group at regional and national events related to the 

sector (e.g. Annual Reception of the All Party Parliamentary Markets Group).  

6.5. To keep Head Office updated with any change in circumstances to the position of Liaison 

Officer for the NMTF Group (e.g. contact details, retirement, etc.) 

 

7. REMOVAL OF RECOGNITION AS A LIAISON OFFICER 

7.1. Voluntary removal from role by a Liaison Officer 

7.1.1. Liaison Officers may step down at any time and for any reason by providing a verbal 

or written request to Head Office. 

7.2. Expiration of membership of NMTF Ltd 

7.2.1. Liaison Officers will automatically lose recognition by NMTF Ltd if their membership 

of the NMTF expires and they fail to renew. 

7.3. Upheld allegations of misconduct from members of NMTF Ltd towards Liaison Officers  

7.3.1. NMTF Ltd reserve the right to remove recognition of a Liaison Officer following 

investigations into allegations of misconduct. 

7.3.2. Allegations of misconduct will be investigated by Head Office in a fair and just 

manner. 

7.3.3. Examples of misconduct include but are not limited to: 

7.3.3.1. Acting contrary to the purpose of NMTF Ltd as outlined in 2.1, 2.2 and 2.3. 

7.3.3.2. Refusal to act on behalf of the members of NMTF Ltd involved unless under 

reasonable circumstances. 

7.3.3.3. Use of the role for personal gain, whether financial or otherwise. 

7.3.4. If recognition of a Liaison Officer has been removed by Head Office, the affected 

individual may appeal to the President of NMTF Ltd who will investigate in a fair and 
Page 25



just manner. During this period of investigation the affected individual will remain 

recognised as a Liaison Officer by NMTF Ltd. The decision of the President of NMTF 

Ltd following his/her investigations is final. 

7.4.  An appropriate Market Manager and/or Chief Executive will be informed of the removal of 

recognition of the Liaison Officer(s) for the NMTF Group. 

 

8. FINANCE 

8.1. The financial matters of an NMTF Groups are for its members to decide. NMTF Groups are 

autonomous from NMTF Ltd. 

 

9.  REVIEW  

9.1. NMTF Group Guidelines will be reviewed annually the month proceeding the AGM of NMTF 

Ltd. 

 

10.  KEY CONTACTS AT NMTF LTD 

 

• Brendan Dyson, Field Support Officer 

brendan.dyson@nmtf.co.uk, 07792 868 854 

• Tania Murphy, Field Support Officer 

tania.murphy@nmtf.co.uk, 07876 190 088 

• Chris Savage, Projects Manager 

chris.savage@nmtf.co.uk, 01226 352 804 

• Tracey Jones, PA to the Chief Executive 

tracey.jones@nmtf.co.uk, 01226 352 805 

 

NMTF, Hampton House, Hawshaw Lane,  

Hoyland, Barnsley, S74 0HA 

Page 26

mailto:brendan.dyson@nmtf.co.uk
mailto:tania.murphy@nmtf.co.uk
mailto:chris.savage@nmtf.co.uk
mailto:tracey.jones@nmtf.co.uk


 

 

Market Sub Committee                      

Date:          21 November 2019 

Title:         Market General Update. 

Purpose of the Report:                          To provide an update on market activity. 

Contact Officer:                                   Adrian Harrison, Market Manager  

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Five Year Plan – To continue to support a vibrant town 
through partnership working & initiatives including 
management of the street market, support businesses, town 
& community promotions & town centre enhancements. 

Implications:   

Financial √ Utilising annual budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

√ Market Development Plan – Recorded actions/updates. 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   
 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

1.1 To note the report.  

2      DELIVERY PLAN UPDATES FOR QUARTER 2, JULY - SEPT 2019/2020  

2.1    The table below provides an update on Themed and Speciality Markets 
 

 Themed Markets 2019/20 Comments 

13th April Easter Ride-out Delivered 

16th April  Easter Egg Hunt Delivered 

17th – 31st May Love your local Market fortnight,  #LYLM Delivered 

6th July  Independents’ Day Delivered 

6th August  National Children’s Play Day Delivered 

22nd October Children’s Halloween Letter Hunt Delivered 

24th December Christmas Eve Market 
 

 Visiting Market 2019/2020  

Fri 26th April, 31st May, 28th June, 26th 
July, 30th August, 27th  
(Last Friday of the month) 

Street Food Heroes Delivered 

Fri 25th – Sat 26th October 
 

France at Home Market Delivered 

 Speciality Markets 2019/2020  

29th June 
 

Vintage, Retro and Collectables Market 
 

Delivered 

18th June, 16th July, 13th August Tasty Tuesday Delivered 

30th Nov Christmas Market  

Page 27

Agenda Item 7



 

  

   

 

2.1 Market trader recruitment updates. 
 

2.1.1. The table below presents the pitch usage figures for Qu. 2.   
 

 

 
Please note:  

 Saturday July 24 there were 8 traders missing due to Canal Festival. 

 Saturday, August 10 was cancelled due to bad weather.  

 In September many permanent traders took their holidays (permanent 
traders allowed 4 holidays a year without being charged for pitch). 

 A trader that converted from trader workshop and casual trading to 
become a permanent Tuesday trader has now expanded from 1 pitch to 
2 pitches. 

 
2.2.2 The table below presents the trader joined / left , figures for Qu.2: 
 

Trader type Qu. 1 
Joined 

Qu. 1 
Left 

Qu. 2 
Joined  

Qu. 2 
Left 

Permanent 3 0 1 1 

Casual 20 0 7 0 

Farmers 0 0 1 0 

Craft 0 0 6 0 

Charities, Community Groups 12 0 9 0 

Pop Up 4 0 0 0 

 

 2 traders that took part in Tasty Tuesday have converted to become casual 
traders. 

 
2.2.3   Farmers market 
 

One new trader attended the farmers market but due to the seasonal nature 
of the product (ice cream) only traded once yet asked if they could remain 
on our trader list. 

 
2.2.4   Pop-Up market (supporting start-up businesses)  
 

 No new Pop-Up market traders this quarter.  
 

2.2.5 Handmade and Craft market (HM&C) (runs March to December)  
 

           6 new traders this quarter.  
 
2.2.6 Charity Pitch 
 

TBC 2020 Community Fair  

Qu. 1 Pitches Used Qu. 2 Pitches Used  

Apr-19 332 Jul-19 393 

May-19 344 Aug-19 342 

June-19 395 Sep-19 299 

Page 28



 

  

   

 

Charities, community groups and not for profit organisations continue to 
take up the opportunity of a free charity pitch. 9 groups utilised this pitch in 
the 2nd quarter.   

 
3. ANNUAL MARKET WORK PLAN 
 

  3.1 At its meeting on 21 February 2019 (Ref.6.3), Committee received the 
annual work plan.  In the coming months officers will review for Committee’s 
consideration (not in order of importance or delivery), see Appendix A. 

 
4.    GENERAL UPDATES 
  
4.1   Officers attended the Annual NABMA Conference where such topics as 

Markets of the Future, Managing Change, Young Traders, Markets and the 
High Street, and How Green Is Your Market? were discussed. In 
comparison to the latter discussion, the Council’s market response to the 
Council’s own Environmental Ambitions is both consistent with and ahead 
of market peers.  

 
5 SOCIAL MEDIA PLATFORMS  
          
5.1  Facebook           

The table below provides an insight to Facebook activity.  

Facebook Analytics    Qu. 1  Qu.2  

 Apr May June Jul Aug Sep 

New likes 29 31 27 n/a 37 25 

Total Likes 849 880 906 927 963 985 

Organic Posts Reach 19,800 17,676 29,653 15,711 14,151 12,154 

Reactions, 
Comments & Shares 

487 551  
653 

 
406 

 
299 

 
277 

 

3 second video views were up by 63.3% vs the previous 30 days. These 

figures include old videos but was mainly due to a live ‘market set-up’ video.                            

Most engaged posts: Street Food Heroes on next week and closure, 

Market Cross Photo from Nolan Johnson, Vegan Market, Market Day Set 

Up Video and 'What Veg is this?'  

Least engaged posts: Trader shares and Farmers Market promotions. 

           Highest reaching posts: Street Food Heroes and market closure, Market 

Cross Photo from Nolan Johnson, Vegan Market, Market Day Set Up Video 

and 'What Veg is this?'  

Generally, posts are reaching more people than they were this time last 

year. 

Page 29



 

  

   

 

Since September 2018 the market page has had posts reach of just over 

351,000, with 6254 reactions and page likes have increased by just over 

60% from 614 to 985. 

5.2     Instagram 

It is difficult to report on Instagram as the analytics tool does not allow to 

change the reporting period and only allows reporting for the last 7 days. 

The last report logged for this period detail is the 1st October.  

Instagram Analytics        
06-Jan  06-Jun  Aug  Oct 

Followers 363 601 741 801 

Accounts Reached (previous 7 days) 296 763 422 480 

Impressions (previous 7 days) 14,34 5878 2450 3061 

 

          There is a significant increase in followers when compared to the January 
figures of 363 (when we started collating data). The latest figures show that 
the market’s Instagram account now has 801 followers, an increase of 428 
over 9 months. Instagram is a growing platform for social media 
communication.  
 

5.3     Twitter       

          The table below shows an increase in Twitter followers but a slightly lower 

tweet impression count possibly due to the holiday period. 

 

 

 

5.4      

Google Analytics (website) 

           The following table shows the performance of the market website.  

Twitter Analytics  Qu.1    Qu.2   

  
 

Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept 

Tweets 46 43 39 39 42 27 

Tweet Impressions 28.6k 20.6k 31.1k 29.3k 18k 11.8k 

New Followers 18 10 11 13 n/a n/a 

Mentions 5 7 20 8 5 1 

Profile Visits 145 66 70 65 43 35 

Google  Analytics  Qu.1     Qu.2  

  
  

Apr May Jun     Jul  Aug Sept 

No of people who 
found site 

 
4,942 

 
5,635 

 
n/a 

 
4,858 

 
5,199 

 
5,585 

Visited the Website 76 71 n/a 69 90 63 

Asked for directions 41 38 n/a 49 59 49 

Contacted the  
Council after looking at 
site 

 
2 

 
2 

 
n/a 

2 4 
 

 
5 

Page 30



 

  

   

 

 
5.5 Following the re-launch of the Council’s web site background planning has 

taken place to refresh the market web page to bring it in line with the new 
website’s visual presentation and performance. 

 
6 CUSTOMER INCENTIVES 
 
6.1 During September officers successfully negotiated a donation of £300 from 

Taylor Wimpey to create £15.00 vouchers to be distributed on a first come; 
first served basis to local community groups to use as prizes in their 
Christmas fundraising activities. The promotion for this opportunity will take 
place in quarter 3, from Wednesday 30th November, until all the vouchers 
have been distributed. This activity repeats last year’s successful pilot. 

 
7        MARKET PUBLICITY (NON-SOCIAL MEDIA BASED)   

7.1     The market team continue to use all available tools to publicise the market. 

This quarter there has been editorial in the following, Bee Local Magazine, 

and the Town Council’s About Town newsletter.  

8         SPECIALITY MARKETS   
 
8.2      Street Food Heroes continued to attend on the last Friday of the Month with 

the organiser pleased with the increased attendance of each event. The 
bad weather forced the cancellation of the last event in September, yet the 
organiser has requested to return next year.  

 
9        FOOTWAY MAINTENANCE WORKS 

 
9.1 The previously reported highway improvements planned by Central 

Bedfordshire Council have taken place. Discussion continues with regard 
to some bollards.  

 
END 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 32



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

Update 21/11/19 

 

Task 

Target 

date 

Committee  

Update – 21 November 2019 

Delivery 

status 

1 Waste Management 
The Council’s waste management 
contract is due for renewal this year. 
Officers will research options for the 
market. 

Oct 19 Grounds & 
Enviro’nt 
P&F 

 
Ref. 40, 11/09/19, Council entered into new waste 
management contract. 
 

 
 

G 

2 Reducing Waste 
Officers explore ways and work up a 
campaign approach that seeks to 
encourage less reliance on ‘once 
only’ uses for bags and receptacles 
by traders and consumers alike. 

Summer 
2019 

Market Sub  
Ref. 15/MK, 29/08/19, Market Environmental Ambitions 
activity reported to Committee. 

 
 

G 

3 Cashless Payments 
Officers will review the current 
procedure with the view to move to 
cashless payments for safety and 
administrative efficiency. 

27 Feb Operational Current position – speciality markets for 2019/2020 
(Vintage, Tasty Tuesday, Vegan) payment will be in 
advance via BACS – as previously successfully done with 
minimum of admin required. This and other methods of 
payment will be investigated for all our markets. 

 

4 Compliance procedure – (trader 
compliance/complaints), Officers will 
review the procedure. 

29 Aug 
2 Sep  
16 Sept 

Market Sub  
C&E 
P&F  

 
Ref 7/MK:  Committee endorsed the Market Trader 
Disciplinary Procedure at its meeting on 23/05/19. 
Ref 20/PF: Committee endorsed the Market Trader 
Disciplinary Procedure and Critical Incident procedure at its 
meeting on 17/06/19. 
 
 

 
 

G 

5 Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing - Ongoing monitoring and 
review as necessary. 

21 Nov 
9 Dec 

Market Sub 
C&E 

Ongoing – as part of the Annual review undertaken 
September 2019 (ref action No.11)  

 

Ref. 
No.11 

6 Adverse weather procedure 
Officers will review the procedure. 

29 July C&E  
P&F 

30/04/19 – informal officer/trader workshop took place to 
explore issues and options. 
Council insurer liaison needed for clarity of permisable 
action – not likely to be confirmed until July ’19. 

 
 
 
 

P
age 33



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

Update 21/11/19 

Ref:11/CE: C&E Committee endorsed the seperation of 
Critical Incident and Adverse Weather proceedures.  
Ref:20/PF, 17/06/19-  Committee endorsed the Critical 
Incident procedure. 
 
Ref: 48 (g), Council approved the Adverse Weather Policy 
and Disclaimer. Policy used on 04/11/19 
 
 

G 

7 Great British Market Awards 
This is an annual award led by the 
National Association of British 
Market Authorities (NABMA). 
Officers will research the award 
categories and assess the criteria in 
readiness to enter the market for an 
award. 

2020- 
2021 

Operational Explore clarification on the different categories and criteria 
used this year.  
 
To be considered for 2020/21. (The call to apply appears to 
take place in autumn)  

 
 

8 Farmers market 
Farmers market trader numbers 
have remained constant for some 
time. Officers will research similar 
markets and reassess the guidance 
documents and its brand - aiming to 
improve trader numbers. 

27 Feb 
‘20 

Market Sub 
C&E  
P&F 

Liaison with Farmers market when work progresses – TBC. 
Final draft to go to C&E Committee with  recommendation 
for P&F for endorsement – if the need for alterations are 
identified.  
 
Review commenced Oct 2019 – ongoing. 
 

 
 

A 

9 Engagement with traders / format 
for Committee trader 
representation 
Officers will review the current 
activity giving structure to 
representation and in doing so seek 
advice from the National Market 
Traders Federation (NMTF). 

27 Feb 
‘20 

Market Sub 
C&E  
P&F 

NMTF have a revised scheme for supporting trader 
representations.  
 
Proposal drafted for Committee consideration - Committee 
item for 21/11/19 
 
 

 
 
 

A 

10 Trader Bursary 
Officers will review the scheme. 

21 Nov 
‘19 

 No bursaries have been requested for the last 2 financial 
years. 
 

 

 
 

P
age 34



Market Sub Committee           Agenda item:  
       Appendix A 

Market Annual Work Plan  - remains ‘active’ and open to changes 

Update 21/11/19 

3x ‘Introduction to market trading’ workshops have been 
delivered where the scheme has been promoted. No one 
has taken up the offer to date. Feedback indicates that the 
commitment is too much for the small amount of financial 
support on offer.  
 
Proposal to delete budget line. Signpost to NMTF support 
and signposting to Start Up Loan Company – Committee 
item for 21/11/19 
 
 

A 
 

11 Annual monitoring review  
By end September on relaunch 
anniversary.  
 

21 Nov 
9 Dec 

Market Sub 
C&E (if 
recommend
ations 
apply) 

Inc. point No.5 above - Review of current pitch sizes and 
pricing. Ongoing monitoring and review as necessary. 

 
 

A 

 
 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 36



 
 
 
Market Sub Committee      

 
Date:    21 November 2019 
 
Title:   Market Budget Report 
 
Purpose of the Report: To update Committee on market budgets 
 
Contact Officer: Adrian Harrison, Market Manager 

 

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan –Aim 2: To promote & 

develop a vibrant town through partnership working & 
initiatives including management of the street market, 
provision of town & community promotions, town centre 
enhancements, tourism & practical support for local 
businesses  

Implications:   

Financial √ Income and expenditure figures. 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
1. RECOMMENDATION 
 

Should members be minded the recommendations are: 
 

1.1 To note the report. 
 

1.2 To delete market budget lines 4575 and 4309  
 

 
2. BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 All figures are taken from the Council’s financial management system and 

rounded up to the nearest pound. The figures presented show all income and 
expenditure received and paid during the months presented. 

 
2.2 The quarterly figures provided reflect a two-year financial period, not a calendar 

two-year period. April being month 1 and concluding with March as month 12.   
 
2.3      Expenditure is clarified as all running costs relating to the market, including 

staffing. It was noted by Committee that a more detailed expenditure report 
would be produced as part of the system-generated budget monitoring reports 
which would be provided to the parent committee - Cultural and Economic 
Services.  
 

 
 

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



  
 
 
 
3. FINANCIAL INFORMATION COVERING JULY TO SEPTEMBER 2018/19 
 
3.1 Income, expenditure and net for July to September 2019/20. 
 

 

 
Income 
 

Note: All permanent traders receive four days holiday a year per trading day. Any 
further absence is charged and paid back. 
 
Expenditure 
 

Note: 
Contracted service invoices are not always received within the budget quarter being 
presented and contribute to the variance in monthly figures, for example, in this 
quarter, (September), there was a payment totalling £5,317 for the barrier security.  
Market promotion, advertising and themed market activity will be reflective in monthly 
spend as per the work delivery timetable. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-£20,000.00

-£10,000.00

 £-

 £10,000.00

 £20,000.00

 £30,000.00

 £40,000.00

 £50,000.00

 £60,000.00

Jul-18 Jul-19 Aug-18 Aug-19 Sep-18 Sep-19 Total

Market Income, Expenditure and Net Income for 
Jul - Sept 2018 vs. Jul 2019 - Sept 2019

Total Income Total Expenditure - Difference

Income 
Summary 

Jul-18 Jul-19 Aug-18 Aug-19 Sep-18 Sep-19 TOTAL 

Total 
Income 

 £      
7,898.00  

 £      
8,024.00  

 £      
6,328.00  

 £    
6,354.00  

 £    
6,544.00  

 £    
6,586.00  

£ 
41,734.00  

Total 
Expenditure 

- 

 £      
8,695.00  

 £      
7,631.00  

 £    
10,281.00  

 £    
7,069.00  

 £    
9,903.00  

 £ 
12,367.00  

£  
55,946.00  

Difference -£         
797.00  

 £          
393.00  

-£      
3,953.00  

-£       
715.00  

-£   
3,359.00  

-£   
5,781.00  

-
£14,212.00  

Page 38



  
 
3.2 Income comparison for per market day/type July to September 2019/20.  

 

 
 

Total Market 
Income 

Jul-18 Jul-19 Aug-18 Aug-19 Sep-18 Sep-19 

Tuesday £ 3,072.00 £ 3,613.00*  £ 2,387.00   £ 2,923.00*   £ 2,847.00   £ 2,600.00  

Saturday £ 4,164.00 £ 3,654.00  £ 2,982.00   £ 2,303.00   £ 3,330.00   £ 3,280.00  

Farmers £ 126.00 £ 108.00  £ 126.00   £ 128.00   £ 126.00   £ 126.00  

Speciality 
(Inc Pop-Up) 

£ 36.00 £ 489.00^  £ 63.00   £ 340.00^   £ 21.00   £ 0  

Handmade & 
Craft 

£  - £ 160.00~  £ 220.00   £ 260.00   £ 220.00   £ 280.00  

Commercial £ 500.00 £ -  £ 550.00   £ 400.00   £ -     £ 300.00  

Other £      - £   -  £    -       £ -     £  -    

Total £ 7,898.00 £ 8,024.00  £ 6,328.00   £ 6,354.00   £ 6,544.00   £ 6,586.00  

 
Income 
 

* The increase income on Tuesdays in July/Aug-19 compared to July/Aug-18 

   reflects the additional casual traders that continued to attend outside of the Tasty 
   Tuesday event.  

^ The increase in Speciality income Jul/Aug-18 to Jul/Aug-19 is due to the ‘Tasty  

   Tuesday event and Street Food Heroes. Both these events finished in August.  
   (Street Food Heroes cancelled in Sept due to bad weather). 

~ Note there was no craft market in July 18 due to the Canal Festival. In July 19 craft 

traders asked for market to take place on Canal Festival day. 
 
Commercial income is dependent on outside agencies and shows no pattern 
throughout the year. 

 £-

 £100.00

 £200.00

 £300.00

 £400.00

 £500.00

 £600.00

Farmers Speciality
(Inc Pop-Up)

Handmade
& Craft

Commercial

Other Market Income for
July - September 2019

July August September

 £-

 £1,000.00

 £2,000.00

 £3,000.00

 £4,000.00

 £5,000.00

 £6,000.00

 £7,000.00

 £8,000.00

 £9,000.00

 £10,000.00

Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Total

Tuesday & Saturday Charter 
Market Income for 

July - September 2019

Tuesday Saturday

Page 39



  
      
3.3 ‘Actual year to date’ against predicted ‘Current Annual Budget’ 2019/20.  
 

 Annual Summary 2017/2018 2018/2019 2019/2020 
Qu.2 

Budget  for 
2019/20 

Total Income  £    82,847.00   £    82,576.00   £    42,300 .00 £    87,550.00 

Total Expenditure - £  112,562.00   -£  115,726.00  -£   64,897.00 -£   120,498.00 

Net Income -£   29,715.00  -£   33,150.00  -£   22,275.00 -£   32,948.00 

 
 
4. 2020/21 BUDGET PROPOSALS 
 
4.1 Council is currently drafting proposals for financial year 2020/21. Officers have 

reviewed the market budget line.  
 
4.2 It is proposed to delete two budget lines: 

 
4.2.1 Market Bursaries at £500 (4575/412) 

 
Regardless of its promotion to new traders, especially through the ‘introduction 
to market trading’ workshops, there has been no up-take for the bursary. 
 
Following Committee’s earlier concerns about being able to recover a bursary 
when a trader does not fulfil the agreement, the amount of the bursary was 
reduced to £250. One prospective start-up trader fed back that the conditions of 
the agreement were too stringent for the level of funding being offered.  Likewise, 
the administration of the scheme would also be disproportionate.  
It is therefore proposed delete the budget line. 
 
Officers would instead proactively signpost start-up traders 
to the National Market Traders Federation (NMTF) for 
ongoing support, guidance and links to broader 
opportunities, e.g. NMTF are strong supporters of the Government backed Start 
Up Loan Company. Traders can apply for up to £25k, and get additional support, 
e.g. budget forecasting, etc.  
 
 

4.2.2  Market IT support currently budgeted at £800 (4309/412)   
 

Market administration and record keeping has improved over recent years. 
Existing Microsoft IT programmes, e.g. Excel, are actively utilised for the market 
service records. Microsoft programmes are broadly familiar and accessible to all 
staff. The KPR software package invested in by Committee has therefore been 
underutilised with Excel proving to be adequate for the task. Officers have been 
notified that the supplier is increasing their support costs by an additional £300 
bringing the total to £1100.  This additional charge would need to be found from 
within existing market budgets. Officers propose to end the IT software contract 
and maintain records using Excel. 
            
           

 
 Page 40



  
 

Pros.  Cons: 

using Excel 

 Easy for all staff to use and 
when covering manager’s 
leave. 

 Easy access for accounts  

 Easy reporting tools. Graphs, 
charts etc.  

 No annual fee or internet 
subscription needed. 

 Able to present same level of 
reporting as MACCS 
 

Using Excel 

 Manual invoices  
 

using MACCS 

 Small lightweight tablet and 
printer. 

 Easy reporting tools. Graphs, 
charts etc. 

 

Using MACCS 

 Expensive to operate. Annual 
fee (£800) plus internet chip 
(£300). 

 Only uses approximately 40% 
of the software included. 

 Only one user and costly to 
train others. 

 Complex to use. 

 No access to by accounts or 
other departments. 

 

           
 
  END 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING
	5 MARKET 12 MONTH REVIEW
	Market Review_Footfall  Appendix B

	6 MARKET TRADER REPRESENTATION
	Appendix A_Trader Representative NMTF_Group_Guidelines_v4

	7 MARKET GENERAL UPDATE
	Appendix A_Market Annual Work Plan_21 Nov update

	8 BUDGET REPORT

